MINUTES

STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION

Ladislaus B. Dombrowski Board Room John A. Hannah Building 608 West Allegan Lansing, Michigan

> February 9, 2016 9:30 a.m.

Present: Mr. Brian J. Whiston, Chairman

Mr. John C. Austin, President

Dr. Casandra E. Ulbrich, Vice President

Ms. Michelle Fecteau, Secretary Dr. Pamela Pugh, Treasurer

Ms. Lupe Ramos-Montigny, NASBE Delegate

Mrs. Kathleen N. Straus

Mrs. Eileen Weiser Dr. Richard Zeile

Mrs. Karen McPhee, representing Governor Rick Snyder, ex officio

Also Present: Mr. Rick Joseph, 2015-2016 Michigan Teacher of the Year

REGULAR MEETING

I. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Whiston called the meeting to order at 9:43 a.m.

II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND ORDER OF PRIORITY

Mr. Austin moved, seconded by Ms. Ramos-Montigny, that the State Board of Education approve the agenda and order of priority.

The vote was taken on the motion.

Ayes: Austin, Fecteau, Pugh, Ramos-Montigny, Ulbrich, Weiser,

Zeile Absent: Straus

The motion carried.

III. INTRODUCTION OF STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION MEMBERS

Mrs. Marilyn Schneider, State Board Executive, introduced members of the State Board of Education and the 2015-2016 Michigan Teacher of the Year.

Mrs. Schneider invited guests to introduce themselves.

Mrs. Straus arrived at 9:45 a.m.

IV. PERSONAL PRIVILEGE – BRIAN J. WHISTON

Mr. Whiston expressed sympathy to Melody Arabo and her family. He said Melody's six-year-old son passed away on January 25th after contracting the flu. Mrs. Arabo served as the 2014-2015 Michigan Teacher of the Year.

V. RECESS

The Board recessed the Regular Meeting at 9:47 a.m. to convene the Committee of the Whole.

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING

VI. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Whiston called the Committee of the Whole Meeting to order at 9:48 a.m.

VII. PRESENTATION ON STRATEGIES FOR DEVELOPING MICHIGAN INTO A TOP 10 EDUCATION STATE IN 10 YEARS

Mr. Brian Whiston, State Superintendent; and Mr. Martin Ackley, Director, Public and Governmental Affairs, presented on Strategies for Developing Michigan into a Top 10 Education State in 10 Years.

Mr. Whiston said there has been a wide range of stakeholder input during the process of defining guiding principles, strategic goals and strategies that all stakeholders can support. He said on December 8, 2015, the Board approved the guiding principles and strategic goals. He said the strategies will be discussed during the morning portion of the meeting and the Board will be asked to take action to receive the report during the afternoon.

Mr. Ackley distributed a document of Goals and Strategies for Developing Michigan into a Top 10 Education State in 10 Years. The document is attached as Exhibit A.

Information was shared via a **PowerPoint presentation**.

Board member comments included the collaborative and productive process with consideration of strategies used by other high achieving states, missing strategies for opening and closing of schools, do not mistake means for ends such as credentials for competency and certification for student achievement, teacher preparation and matching teaching styles to learning styles, informed citizenship, students with disabilities included in employment opportunities and prepared to reach their full potential, equity gaps addressed, and appreciation for the leadership of the State Superintendent.

VIII. <u>PRESENTATION ON FISCAL YEAR 2016-18 CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT FUND STATE PLAN</u>

Ms. Susan Broman, Deputy Superintendent, Great Start; and Ms. Lisa Brewer-Walraven; presented on Fiscal Year 2016-2018 Child Care and Development Fund State Plan.

Mr. Whiston said the Child Development and Care Program in Michigan provides low-income families with access to high-quality child care opportunities. He said due to significant program rule changes, Michigan has begun working toward implementing program changes related to health and safety requirements for child care providers, family-friendly eligibility policies, and providing transparent information to parents about child care choices. He said the presentation will focus on the Child Care and Development Fund State Plan.

Information was provided via a PowerPoint presentation.

Board member comments included opportunities for Flint as it faces the water crisis, and plans for services and research opportunities.

IX. ADJOURNMENT

The Board recessed the Committee of the Whole at 10:26 a.m. and reconvened the Regular Meeting at 10:27 a.m.

REGULAR MEETING

X. APPROVAL OF STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION MINUTES

C. Approval of Minutes of Regular and Committee of the Whole Meeting of January 12, 2016

Ms. Ramos-Montigny moved, seconded by Mr. Austin, that the State Board of Education approve the Minutes of the Regular and Committee of the Whole Meeting of January 12, 2016.

The vote was taken on the motion.

The motion carried unanimously.

XI. PRESIDENT'S REPORT

Mr. Austin said Board members have received an evaluation document in preparation for the evaluation of the State Superintendent, which will be on the March meeting agenda. Mr. Austin thanked Mr. Whiston for the good work he has done since becoming the State Superintendent on July 1, 2015.

Mr. Austin said it is important to ensure that Flint children and families receive needed resources as a result of the water crisis.

Mr. Austin said with regard to Detroit Public Schools, it is essential to continue to reinforce what's important in legislation to help students learn. He said that includes lifting the debt, local governance, managing public schools in Detroit for quality and access, and opening and closing schools in a coordinated fashion because resources are being affected. He said he appreciates the legislative testimony of Mr. Whiston.

Mr. Austin said he has been working with Department staff, Mr. Rick Joseph and stakeholders to develop a Board statement and guidance supporting lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender and questioning students. He said it will be presented to the Board within the next few months.

XII. REPORT OF THE SUPERINTENDENT

Reports

- D. Human Resources Report
- E. Report on Department of Education Cosponsorships

Grants

- F. Report on Grant Awards
 - 2015-2016 Allocation of Title I School Improve Funds to Support Regional Assistance to Priority and Focus Schools - Amendment; \$16,258,500
 - 2. 2015-2016 Van Andel Education Institute Initial; \$250,000
 - 3. 2015-2016 Section 35a(5) Intermediate School District Early Literacy Coaches Initial; \$1,875,000
 - 4. 2015-2016 Sections 35a(3) and 35a(4) for Professional Development for Early Literacy Educators Initial; \$1,900,000
 - 5. 2014-2015 Title I, Part A Improving Basic Programs Amendment; \$487,380,823
 - 6. 2014-2015 Title I, Part D, Subpart 2 Prevention and Intervention for Neglected and Delinquent Amendment; \$7,190,184
 - 7. 2015-2016 Title I, Part C Migrant Education Program Identification and Recruitment Centers Initial; \$467,431
 - 8. 2015-2016 Title I, Part D, Subpart 2 Prevention and Intervention for Neglected and Delinquent Amendment; \$7,269,752

Mr. Whiston provided a verbal report on his visit to Detroit Public Schools with Representative Sherry Gay-Dagnogo and State Board members, and his visit to L'Anse Creuse Public Schools.

Mr. Whiston said he testified before a joint meeting of the Senate Education Committee and the Senate Education Appropriations Committee on February 3rd. He said his testimony focused on the work being done to support struggling schools. He said the following day, he testified before the Senate Government Operations Committee on Detroit Public Schools.

Mr. Whiston said he signed the necessary paperwork to provide supplemental funding to Flint Community Schools and Genesee Intermediate School District. He said the focus will be on school nursing, nutrition, and early childhood screening and programming. He said there will be additional investments to support Flint community youth and families when the Governor's Executive Budget Recommendation is presented.

Mr. Whiston said he and Mr. Kyle Guerrant, Deputy Superintendent, Administration and School Support Services, serve on the Governor's Water Interagency Coordinating Committee.

Mr. Whiston said the Michigan School for the Deaf has had water tested for lead levels and faucets are being replaced in the dormitory. He said the regularly scheduled parent meeting is later tonight at the school, and health department staff will be present to provide information to families.

Mr. Whiston said discussions are continuing regarding the reorganization of the Michigan Department of Education. He said staff input is being sought, and he is impressed with the excellent limited staff.

Mr. Whiston said the Every Student Succeeds Act is a unique and exciting opportunity to offer stakeholders an open process for providing direction in a partnership for success.

XIII. REPORT OF MICHIGAN TEACHER OF THE YEAR

Mr. Rick Joseph, the 2015-2016 Michigan Teacher of the Year, provided his report. Mr. Joseph shared a slide show presentation highlighting his activities during the past month as the Michigan Teacher of the Year.

Mr. Joseph read the book, "I Am Jazz" by Jessica Herthel, which is a story of a transgender child.

Mr. Joseph shared information on National Board Certified Teachers, and Mr. Austin expressed support for the program.

XIV. APPROVAL OF ENERGY CAREER CLUSTER AND CONTENT STANDARDS

There was Board consensus to reorder the agenda.

Ms. Patty Cantu, Director, Career and Technical Education, presented the Approval of Energy Career Cluster and Content Standards.

Mr. Whiston said the Board heard a presentation on the Energy Career Cluster and Content Standards on December 8, 2015. He said following the presentation there was a period of public comment, and no comments were received. He said the Board is being asked to approve the standards.

Mrs. Straus moved, seconded by Ms. Ramos-Montigny, that the State Board of Education approve a 17th Career Cluster in Energy and adopt the content standards, as described in the Superintendent's memorandum dated January 26, 2016.

The vote was taken on the motion.

The motion carried unanimously.

XV. STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATIVE UPDATE

Mr. Martin Ackley, Director, Public and Governmental Affairs; Dr. Casandra Ulbrich, Chair, State Board of Education Legislative Committee; and Mrs. Kathleen Straus, NASBE Governmental Affairs Committee; presented the State and Federal Legislative Update.

Mr. Ackley said the Legislative Committee met on February 8, 2016, and discussion resulted in draft statements that are being presented to the full Board for approval at today's meeting.

Draft statements were distributed, and discussed.

Senate Bill 710

Dr. Ulbrich read the draft statement on Senate Bill 710, a bill that creates Community School Districts.

Mrs. Straus moved, seconded by Ms. Ramos-Montigny that the State Board of Education adopt the Statement on Senate Bill 710.

Discussion followed.

Dr. Pugh said people are attending the meeting to provide public comment on Detroit Public Schools, and she suggested that they be allowed to speak at this time since their comments relate to the statements being discussed. There was Board consensus to allow public comment, and continue discussion on the draft statements during the afternoon portion of the meeting.

Discussion continued later in the meeting.

XVI. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION IN STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING

- A. Mr. LaMar Lemmons, Detroit, Michigan. Mr. Lemmons, representing the Detroit Board of Education, shared verbal comments regarding Detroit Public Schools.
- B. Mr. John Telford, Detroit, Michigan. Mr. Telford shared verbal comments regarding Detroit Public Schools.
- C. Ms. Tawanna Simpson, Detroit, Michigan. Ms. Simpson, representing the Detroit Board of Education, shared verbal comments regarding Detroit Public Schools.
- D. Ms. Patricia Singleton, Detroit, Michigan. Ms. Singleton, representing the Detroit Board of Education, shared verbal comments regarding Detroit Public Schools.
- E. Senator Goeff Hansen, 34th District, Hart, Michigan. Senator Hansen shared verbal comments supporting the Goals and Strategies for Developing Michigan into a Top 10 Education State in 10 Years.
- F. Senator David Knezek, 5th District, Dearborn Heights, Michigan. Senator Knezek shared verbal comments supporting the Goals and Strategies for Developing Michigan into a Top 10 Education State in 10 Years.

Discussion with Senator Hansen and Senator Knezek followed.

XVII. <u>RECESS</u>

The Board recessed the Regular Meeting at 11:46 a.m. and reconvened at 1:03 p.m.

XVIII. PERSONAL PRIVILEGE – MR. BRIAN J. WHISTON

Mr. Whiston asked Deputy Superintendents to introduce employees recently hired by the Michigan Department of Education.

Mr. Kyle Guerrant, Deputy Superintendent, Administration and School Support Services, introduced Ms. Ann Dennis, Director, Financial Management.

Ms. Susan Broman, Deputy Superintendent, Great Start, introduced Ms. Joy Milano, Great Start, Early Childhood Development & Family Education.

Dr. Venessa Keesler, Deputy Superintendent, Accountability Services, introduced Ms. Kate Gallagher, Office of Evaluation, Research and Accountability.

XIX. <u>PUBLIC PARTICIPATION IN STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING</u> (continued)

- G. Mr. Kevin Tobe, Haslett, Michigan. Mr. Tobe, representing the Network of Michigan Educators, shared comments and written information on technology implementation in the classroom.
- H. Mr. John Lauve, Holly, Michigan. Mr. Lauve, shared comments and written information on educational issues.
- I. Ms. Terra Walters, Traverse City, Michigan. Ms. Walters shared comments on dyslexia.
- J. Mr. John Stewart, Plymouth, Michigan. Mr. Stewart shared verbal comments and written information on public education and an invitation to a choral concert.
- K. Mr. Tom Livezey, Superintendent, Oakridge Public Schools, Muskegon, Michigan. Mr. Livezey, representing the Michigan Association of School Administrators, shared comments supporting the Top 10 in 10 Goals and Strategies.
- L. Mr. Blake Prewitt, Superintendent, Ferndale Public Schools, Ferndale, Michigan. Mr. Prewitt, representing the Michigan Association of School Administrators, shared verbal comments supporting the Top 10 in 10 Goals and Strategies.
- M. Dr. Yvonne Caamal Canul, Superintendent, Lansing School District, Lansing, Michigan. Dr. Caamal Canul, representing the Michigan Association of School Administrators, shared verbal comments supporting the Top 10 in 10 Goals and Strategies.
- N. Dr. David Zuhlke, Lansing, Michigan. Dr. Zuhlke, representing Middle Cities Education Association, shared verbal and written comments supporting the Top 10 in 10 Goals and Strategies.
- O. Dr. Sean Kottke, Lansing, Michigan. Dr. Kottke, President-elect, Michigan Reading Association, shared verbal comments and a written invitation to the Michigan Reading Association Annual Conference.

XX. REPORT ON STRATEGIES FOR DEVELOPING MICHIGAN INTO A TOP 10 EDUCATION STATE IN 10 YEARS

Mr. Whiston said earlier in the meeting there was a presentation and discussion regarding Strategies for Developing Michigan into a Top 10 Education State in 10 Years. He said the Board is being asked to receive the report.

Mrs. Straus moved, seconded by Dr. Pugh, that the State Board of Education receive the report on Goals and Strategies for Developing Michigan into a Top 10 Education State in 10 Years, as presented at the February 9, 2016, State Board of Education meeting.

Discussion followed.

The vote was taken on the motion.

The motion carried unanimously.

Goals and Strategies for Developing Michigan into a Top 10 Education State in 10 Years is attached as Exhibit A.

XXI. STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATIVE UPDATE (continued)

This is a continuation of discussion earlier in the meeting.

Senate Bill 710 (continued)

Following discussion, a motion was made to amend the draft language.

Mr. Austin moved, seconded by Ms. Fecteau, that section B) be amended as follows: The creation of a LOCALLY GOVERNED ENTITY OR ENTITIES Detroit Education Commission to manage the closing and opening of schools within the CITY OF DETROIT Community District.

The vote was taken on the motion.

Ayes: Austin, Fecteau, Straus, Ulbrich

Nays: Pugh, Ramos-Montigny, Weiser, Zeile

The motion to amend failed.

Mrs. Wesier moved, seconded by Ms. Ramos-Montigny, that section B) be amended as follows: The creation of a MECHANISM Detroit Education Commission to OVERSEE THE SITING FOR OPENING AND CLOSING manage the closing and opening of schools within the Community District.

Discussion followed.

The vote was taken on the motion.

Ayes: Ramos-Montigny, Weiser

Nays: Austin, Fecteau, Pugh, Straus, Ulbrich, Zeile

The motion to amend failed.

Dr. Ulbrich moved, seconded by Mr. Austin, that section B) be amended as follows: The creation of a LOCALLY GOVERNED MECHANISM Detroit Education Commission to OVERSEE THE SITING FOR OPENING AND CLOSING manage the closing and opening of PUBLIC schools IN THE CITY OF DETROIT within the Community District.

The vote was taken on the motion.

Ayes: Austin, Fecteau, Straus, Ulbrich

Nays: Pugh, Ramos-Montigny, Weiser, Zeile

The motion to amend failed.

Mrs. Weiser moved, seconded by Dr. Zeile, that the State Board of Education adopt the Statement on Senate Bill 710, with the elimination of section B).

The vote was taken on the motion.

Ayes: Austin, Fecteau, Pugh, Ramos-Montigny, Ulbrich,

Weiser, Zeile

Nays: Straus

The motion carried.

The State Board of Education Statement on Senate Bill 710 is attached as Exhibit B.

Mr. Austin said it is important that there be a mechanism to address the opening and closing of schools. There was Board consensus to return to discussion on the issue later in the meeting.

Senate Bills 713-715

Dr. Ulbrich read the draft statement on Senate Bills 713-715, legislation addressing staff sickouts leading to school closures.

Ms. Ramos-Montigny moved, seconded by Mrs. Weiser, that the State Board of Education adopt the Statement on Senate Bills 713-715.

Discussion followed.

Dr. Zeile moved, seconded by Dr. Ulbrich, that the statement be amended replacing "tempering" with "tabling" in the second paragraph.

The vote was taken on the motion to amend.

The motion to amend carried unanimously.

The vote was taken on the motion, as amended.

The motion carried unanimously.

The State Board of Education Statement on Senate Bills 713-715 is attached as Exhibit C.

Opening and Closing of Public Schools

Mr. Austin moved, seconded by Dr. Ulbrich, that the State Board of Education urges the Legislature to pass legislation directing the Michigan Department of Education to create a mechanism overseeing the opening and closing of public schools to ensure quality, accessibility and financial stability.

Discussion followed.

The vote was taken on the motion.

Ayes: Austin, Fecteau, Pugh, Straus, Ulbrich

Nays: Weiser, Zeile

Abstain: Ramos-Montigny

The motion carried.

The State Board of Education Statement on Opening and Closing of Public Schools is attached as Exhibit D.

Mrs. Straus provided an update on the federal Every Student Succeeds Act stating that hearings will be held on February 10, 2016.

XXII. RESOLUTION HONORING CITIZENS RESEARCH COUNCIL OF MICHIGAN ON ITS CENTENNIAL

Mr. Austin said the Citizens Research Council of Michigan, a non-partisan public affairs research organization, was founded in 1916 and is celebrating its centennial this year. He said in recognition of 100 years of service, from which the State Board of Education has benefited, approval of a resolution is being proposed.

Ms. Ramos-Montigny moved, seconded by Mrs. Weiser, that the State Board of Education adopt the resolution honoring the Citizens Research Council of Michigan on its centennial, as attached to the President's memorandum dated February 3, 2016.

The vote was taken on the motion.

The motion carried unanimously.

The resolution honoring the Citizens Research Council is attached as Exhibit E.

XXIII. CONSENT AGENDA

- L. Approval of Baker College as an Educator Preparation Institution
- M. Approval of the College for Creative Studies as an Educator Preparation Institution

Mr. Austin moved, seconded by Ms. Ramos-Montigny, that the State Board of Education approve the Superintendent's recommendation for the consent agenda as follows:

- L. grant final approval to Baker College as a Michigan Educator Preparation Institution, as described in the State Superintendent's memorandum dated January 26, 2016; and
- M. grant final approval to the College for Creative Studies as a Michigan Educator Preparation Institution, as described in the State Superintendent's memorandum dated January 26, 2016.

The vote was taken on the motion.

The motion carried unanimously.

XXIV. COMMENTS BY STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION MEMBERS

Ms. Ramos-Montigny said the Grand Rapids community is celebrating the life of Cesar E. Chavez with a social justice march and community gathering on March 17, 2016. She said the theme is education and there will be music, speeches and presentations. She said Mrs. Straus will be receiving the community award and all are invited to attend.

Ms. Fecteau said there has been talk that teachers who walked out at Detroit Public Schools didn't care about the students. She said the teachers are advocating for children.

XXV. TENTATIVE AGENDA FOR NEXT MEETING

Mr. Whiston asked the Board to notify him or a member of the agenda planning committee with suggested agenda topics for future Board meetings. He provided the upcoming State Board of Education meeting dates.

XXVI. FUTURE MEETING DATES

- A. Tuesday, March 8, 2016, Regular Meeting (9:30 a.m.)
- B. Tuesday, April 12, 2016, Regular Meeting (9:30 a.m.)
- C. Tuesday, May 10, 2016, Regular Meeting (9:30 a.m.)

XXVII. <u>PRESENTATION ON LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR'S SPECIAL EDUCATION TASK</u> <u>FORCE REPORT</u>

Lieutenant Governor Brian Calley presented on the Special Education Reform Task Force Final Report to the Governor.

Mr. Whiston said at the September 8, 2015, Board meeting, Lieutenant Governor Calley shared what he heard as he travelled across Michigan on his special education listening tour. He said Mrs. Fecteau and Mrs. Straus participated in the tour.

Mr. Whiston said Lieutenant Governor Calley convened a Special Education Reform Task Force, and its membership included Mrs. Fecteau, Mrs. Weiser, and Special Education Director Ms. Teri Chapman. Mr. Whiston said implementing the Special Education Reform Task Force Report is among the Strategies for Developing Michigan into a Top 10 Education State in 10 Years.

Lieutenant Governor Calley shared information via a <u>PowerPoint presentation</u>. He said <u>the Task Force report</u> identifies five key areas for improvement to help all Michigan children reach their full potential.

Discussion followed regarding collaboration and implementation of the Special Education Reform Task Force Report.

XXVIII. <u>ADJOURNMENT</u>

The meeting adjourned at 3:58 p.m.

The video archive of the meeting is available at www.michigan.gov/sbe.

Respectfully submitted,

Michelle Fecteau Secretary







putting Michigan on the map as a premier education state

THE RIGHT TO EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITY

To realize Michigan becoming a Top 10 education state in 10 years, the long-term embrace to the existing structure and system of education needs to be challenged and reshaped, giving everyone an opportunity to succeed – from the students, to the educators, parents, and business community.

No matter where students live, they should have access to the same high-quality educational opportunities as any other student in Michigan. Likewise, teachers across the state should have equitable opportunities to learn and excel in their profession no matter where they live and teach.

Michigan must ensure that each and every child can read and do math, be a creative thinker and problem-solver, and be an informed, open-minded, and engaged citizen in our society. To become a Top 10 education state, Michigan needs to create a coherent system with a challenging curriculum, then give it ample time to work.

We must recognize that Poverty Matters – not to be used as an excuse, but as a purpose to design a Michigan system of education that motivates and excites all children about learning, keeps them in school, and provides them with hope and knowledge for a successful future.

Michigan must establish an educational system that grants indelible rights for all education stakeholders to succeed – a system focused more on what is best for children and their learning, and less on governance. The debate of school governance too often is the canvas that shrouds the real purpose of education opportunity.

This framework is a vision of the goals and strategies needed to propel Michigan to be a Top 10 state, developed with input from education stakeholders across the spectrum of the state. A more detailed Action Plan now will be developed that sets forth timelines, implementation, and measures of success.



putting Michigan on the map as a premier education state

In response to a request for suggestions on how to make Michigan a Top 10 state for education within the next 10 years, the Michigan Department of Education (MDE) and State Board of Education (SBE) received input from numerous stakeholders groups, education partners, and individual citizens.

This valuable information was provided via formal presentations to the SBE, written submissions, one-on-one and group meetings with the State Superintendent, and through more than 750 responses collected through a dedicated website.

GUIDING PRINCIPLES

- To be successful at becoming a Top 10 performing state in 10 years, Michigan must develop a
 coherent and cohesive strategy for the children, and implement that plan with continuity for
 multiple years. Education reform takes time; we must implement, use evidence and data to
 correct course, and continue with progress on key goals.
 - A "Can-Do Culture" that focuses on student-directed learning and student outcomes, and the work on the instruction must take priority.
 - Data and accountability will be used to help drive resources and focus improvement activities for students and educators. Attention will be on transparency in support of key goals for the entire system to make Michigan a Top 10 state for education.
 - Poverty matters, not to be used as an excuse, but as a purpose to design a Michigan system of education that motivates and excites all children about learning, keeps them in school, and provides them with hope and knowledge for a successful future.

To realize Michigan becoming a Top 10 education state within the next 10 years, the existing structure and system of education must be challenged and reshaped. Michigan must establish an educational system that grants indelible rights for all stakeholders to succeed — a system focused more on what is best for children and their learning. This is a framework of the strategic goals necessary to move Michigan forward.

STRATEGIC GOALS

- Provide every child access to an aligned, high-quality
 P-20 system from early childhood to post-secondary attainment through a multi-stakeholder collaboration with business and industry, labor, and higher education—to maximize lifetime learning and success.
- 2 Implement, with strong district and building leadership, high-quality instruction in every classroom through a highly coherent, child-centered instructional model where students meet their self-determined academic and personal goals to their highest potential.
- 3 Develop, support, and sustain a high-quality, prepared, and collaborative education workforce.



putting Michigan on the map as a premier education state



Reduce the impact of high-risk factors, including poverty, and provide equitable resources to meet the needs of all students to ensure that they have access to quality educational opportunities.



Ensure that parents/guardians are engaged and supported partners in their child's education.



Create a strong alignment and partnership with job providers, community colleges, and higher education to assure a prepared and quality future workforce, and informed and responsible citizens.



Further develop an innovative and cohesive state education agency that supports an aligned, coherent education system at all levels (state, ISD, district, and school).





Goal 1: Provide every child access to an aligned, high-quality P-20 system from early childhood to post-secondary attainment – through a multi-stakeholder collaboration with business and industry, labor, and higher education – to maximize lifetime learning and success.

STRATEGIES

Strategy 1.1: Encourage policies that promote engagement of families from a child's birth that encourage optimal development of children prior to kindergarten. This includes:

- Focusing investments on evidence-based programs from birth to age three, including home visitation and high quality child care.
- o) Allocating funding to provide early intervention services to the infants and toddlers with disabilities and developmental delays identified through Early On.
- c) Complete development of and promote understanding of the alignment of birth through third grade developmental and learning expectations.

Strategy 1.2: Expand access to quality publicly-funded preschool for all four-year-olds by 2020; three-year-olds by 2025.

Strategy 1.3: Ensure that every Michigan student has the opportunity to take meaningful steps toward their postsecondary career while still in high school, including:

- a) Up to sixty transferable college credits or a recognized industry credential/certificate through access to quality dual enrollment, early middle colleges, and/or career/technical education.
- b) Access to Advanced Placement and/or International Baccalaureate programs.
- c) Increase the number of career counselors in support of this strategy.
- d) Hold districts harmless regarding costs for enrolled students.
- e) All public school districts have access to affordable post-secondary options.

Strategy 1.4: Ensure that the P-20 accountability system has aligned expectations and outcomes, and that appropriate data and measures are used to survey the transition of Michigan's children between various stages of the P-20 pipeline.

Strategy 1.5: Ensure that the P-20 system includes multiple opportunities for civics education to ensure students are informed and responsible citizens.



Goal 1: Provide every child access to an aligned, high-quality P-20 system from early childhood to post-secondary attainment – through a multi-stakeholder collaboration with business and industry, labor, and higher education – to maximize lifetime learning and success.

STRATEGIES

Strategy 1.6: Enhanced high school career and college guidance capacity and training to:

- a) Improve college/career readiness, enrollment, and completion metrics.
- b) Align K-12 assessments with post-secondary institution's entry/readiness requirements.
- Encourage voluntary local K-12/higher education partnerships.
- d) Implement recommendations relative to career/college readiness outlined in the *Reaching for Opportunity Report*.

Strategy 1.7: Develop and implement a strategy to better understand and support Michigan public schools' capacity to provide career- and college-ready coursework and instruction to all students, including postsecondary and vocational training:

- a) Establish a consortium of postsecondary and vocational training educational entities, K-12 educational entities, K-12 advocacy organizations, labor, and Michigan businesses to:
 - I. Assess needs to strengthen and build capacity in the system.
 - II. Align educational and support systems.

Strategy 1.8: Promote active engagement of school leaders in community collaborative efforts leading toward business/industry/labor and philanthropic investment.

Strategy 1.9: Support strong local boards of education, focused on transparency, fiscal responsibility, and raising student achievement, to assure that all students graduate Career- and College-Ready.

Goal 2

Goal 2: Implement, with strong district and building leadership, high-quality instruction in every classroom through a highly coherent, child-centered instructional model where students meet their self-determined academic and personal goals to their highest potential.

STRATEGIES

Strategy 2.1: Develop and implement a collaborative, integrated, and transparent P-20 personalized learning system for each student in districts and schools.

- a) Align the system to the Michigan Merit Curriculum, Michigan's Career- and College-Ready standards, and relevant and appropriate personalized learning policy.
- b) Provide guidance so that students, in conjunction with teachers, counselors, and parents, develop individualized goals aligned to their strengths, challenges, and interests.
-) Develop a coherent assessment system to support the personalization of learning for all students.

Strategy 2.2: Establish and implement with fidelity a high-quality multi-tiered system of supports (universal education).

- a) Establish and implement with fidelity a high-quality, multi-tiered Positive Behavior Intervention and Support (PBIS) process.
- b) Implement the current initiative for early literacy (recommended by the Governor's Third Grade Reading Work Group Report and the legislature) in collaboration with the Governor's Michigan K-12 Literacy Commission that focuses on ensuring literacy for all students by third grade and beyond.
- c) Develop and implement evidence-based, results-driven programs to meet the needs of all students, including differentiated services and instruction for special populations (and particular focus on English learners, students with disabilities, economically-disadvantaged students, and African American students.
- d) Implement multi-tiered behavioral supports to reduce suspension and expulsion practices. Include engagement of community-based Integrated Student Supports (whole-child) organizations with an evidence-based model to engage the broad spectrum of community partners (law enforcement, courts, mental health, faith-based organizations, etc.) to assist in a comprehensive approach to behavioral interventions.
- e) Implement the Governor's Special Education Reform Task Force recommendations.
- f) Provide a safe, secure, and healthy school environment by fostering a positive school climate and culture.

Goal 2

Goal 2: Implement, with strong district and building leadership, high-quality instruction in every classroom through a highly coherent, child-centered instructional model where students meet their self-determined academic and personal goals to their highest potential.

STRATEGIES

Strategy 2.3: Implement Deeper Learning competencies/experiences across content areas.

Strategy 2.4: Adopt and implement with fidelity, high Career- and College-Ready standards for and expectations of all students and ensure that educators monitor student learning against standards so that results are actionable in real-time.

- a) Ensure a viable curriculum is accessible to all students.
- b) Develop an infrastructure to support the implementation of Deeper Learning pedagogy.

Strategy 2.5: Develop and implement an effective monitoring and feedback system for all stakeholders utilizing reflective dialogue and opportunities for collaboration.

- a) Focus educator effectiveness activities, including observation-based evaluation systems, on the provision of quality feedback to support instruction.
- Develop supports for all stakeholders in the P-12 system to incorporate quality feedback that improves learning outcomes.

Strategy 2.6: Ensure that all students within the P-12 system are able to engage in a well-rounded learning experience that builds upon active engagement in language, culture, creativity, and physical activity in an appropriate learning environment.

- a) Develop a P-12 system wherein every student in Michigan graduates with the ability to read, write, speak, and listen in their primary language and at least one additional world language, with certification in languages reflected on their high school diploma/transcript.
- b) Develop a P-12 system wherein every student in Michigan engages in music, art, and performing and applied arts throughout their learning experience.
- c) Develop a P-12 system wherein every student in Michigan is able to engage in integrated STEM and STEAM programming, with certification for STEAM competencies to be included on their high school diploma/transcript.

"Principals are pleased to see that Michigan's Top 10 in 10 goals are instructionally focused and centered around increasing student achievement."

Wendy Zdeb, Executive Director, Michigan Association of Secondary School Principals

Goal 2

Goal 2: Implement, with strong district and building leadership, high-quality instruction in every classroom through a highly coherent, child-centered instructional model where students meet their self-determined academic and personal goals to their highest potential.

STRATEGIES

Strategy 2.7: Ensure that all P-12 students are able to access and utilize information supports and technologies as learning tools throughout their learning experience.

- a) Ensure that all students have access to libraries and media centers within their school, district, and/or community. Ensure that such resources are appropriately staffed to ensure system integrity.
- b) Ensure that all students have access to personalized learning technologies that can be used by the learner to enhance and support learning wherever possible.

Strategy 2.8: Provide an integrated system of guidance to develop and support district and school leadership competencies, to accelerate student achievement, including:

- a) Operations, systems, and infrastructure.
- b) A culture and climate of productive learning.
- c) Curriculum, instruction, and assessment supported by technology with necessary classroom level resources provided.

"Making Michigan a top ten education state will require strong leadership, a deep commitment to accountability and capacity-building, and an unwavering focus on what all Michigan students need to succeed. We hope this is the first step toward a better direction for Michigan students' future."

Amber Arellano, Executive Director, The Education Trust-Midwest

Goal 3

Goal 3: Develop, support, and sustain a high-quality, prepared, and collaborative education workforce.

STRATEGIES

Strategy 3.1: Identify each component of the entire educator pipeline. The term "educator" includes all roles in the education workforce – teachers, principals, administration, support staff, counselors, etc. This pipeline includes recruitment, preparation, placement, mentoring and induction, evaluation, and ongoing professional development. Two important components of this pipeline that will be addressed are:

- a) Development of a new system of training and induction for educators, based on the model of novice, practicing, and master levels. This model will enhance the mentoring and induction process and also will leverage Michigan's existing teaching talent by utilizing exemplary educators who can serve as coaches and mentors of other educators.
- b) Implementation of Michigan's educator evaluation law with fidelity, with an emphasis on continuous improvement and support for educators; delivering high-quality, standards-aligned professional development that is targeted based on individual educator needs; and ensuring a focus on high quality instructional practice and instructional leadership.

Strategy 3.2: Coherent, state- and district-provided professional development, jointly developed with educators.

- a) Major initiatives (such as early literacy, educator evaluations, assessment literacy, and curriculum alignment) will utilize a professional development plan that includes statewide deployment of high-quality professional development to all educators.
- b) All MDE-funded activities that take place on a local or regional level will require a professional learning plan that is aligned to Michigan's professional learning standards.

Strategy 3.3: Fully implement "Michigan's Plan to Ensure Equitable Access to Excellent Educators" that includes:

- a) Initiatives and interventions designed to attract and retain quality educators in high-needs schools and districts.
- b) Strategic research and evaluation activities to identify shortages in the educator workforce and formulate plans to address them.
- c) Identify areas where additional incentives or supports are needed in the education workforce and develop policies or programs to meet this need.

Goal
3

"Top performing states invest strategically and consistently in the main drivers of achievement: high expectations for all students; excellent teaching sustained by strong support and professional development; early childhood education; making sure all student get great college and career guidance, and get started earning post-secondary credits while in high school; put more resources behind students that due to poverty have further to travel, and hold all schools accountable for quality."

John Austin, President, State Board of Education

Goal 3: Develop, support, and sustain a high-quality, prepared, and collaborative education workforce.

STRATEGIES

Strategy 3.4: Address the perception of educators as professionals by improving educator employment conditions; by promoting and celebrating educators; and by collaborating with educators on appropriate policy and programming decisions.

Strategy 3.5: Develop incentives to support teachers remaining in the teaching profession and becoming master teachers.

a) Support an effort leading to more National Board Certifications for teachers.

"Michigan educators have said "Ask Us" before setting education policy. The SBE and Superintendent Whiston have done exactly that by involving us in their work to build a coherent plan to make Michigan a top ten education state once again."

Gretchen Dziadosz, Executive Director, Michigan Education Association "Superintendents from around the State of Michigan support the Top 10 in 10 goals and look forward to working in a collaborative manner to ensure this vision is achieved."

Chris Wigent, Executive Director, Michigan Association of School Administrators

Goal 4

Goal 4: Reduce the impact of high-risk factors, including poverty, and provide equitable resources to meet the needs of all students to ensure that they have access to quality educational opportunities.

STRATEGIES

Strategy 4.1: Focus investment on implementing evidence-based, independently-evaluated, results-driven Integrated Student Supports (whole-child) provided in collaboration with community partners who place staff in schools to facilitate access to community resources for clothing, nutrition, physical, behavioral, social-emotional, mental health, post-secondary access, career readiness, tutoring, mentoring, and other supports necessary for students to stay in school, be promoted, and graduate on time. Specifically this includes:

- a) Full implementation of all requirements of the National School Lunch Program (NSLP) meal patterns, regulations, including school breakfast, lunch, and afterschool snacks and supper.
- b) Encourage eligible schools to participate in Community Eligibility Provision (CEP).
- c) Encourage access to school health services via expansion for school nursing, school mental health and school-based health centers.
- d) Expand specific coordinated P-20 partnerships and initiatives with other state, local, and private agencies with proven evidence-based practices, with the goal of expanding access to coordinated service programs and family advocacy supports. Priority given to programs proven to increase attendance, positive behaviors, and improved coursework.

Goal 4

Goal 4: Reduce the impact of high-risk factors, including poverty, and provide equitable resources to meet the needs of all students to ensure that they have access to quality educational opportunities.

STRATEGIES

Strategy 4.2: Support extended learning opportunities and activities that are coordinated with other learning programs as part of the P-20 system.

- a) Increase and coordinate opportunities for quality out-of-school time learning aligned with the State Board of Education Michigan Out-of-School Time Standards of Quality.
- b) Consideration of a balanced calendar approach.

Strategy 4.3: Provide and promote evidence-based practices to create efficiencies at the local administrative level to focus more resources in the classroom such as (School Funding Committee recommendations):

- a) Streamlining administrative functions and reducing reporting requirements.
- b) Coordinated approaches to:
 - I. Enrollment.
 - II. Transportation.
 - III. Choice options to determine that all children get the educational opportunity for quality education options.
 - IV. Opening new schools.
- c) Sinking Fund millages assessed on a regional basis, allowing for building maintenance, educational technology, physical school environment, and pupil transportation purposes.
- d) Promote the efficient, flexible, and differentiated use of current resources, including better coordination of local, state, and federal funds to get to agreed-upon educational outcomes.
- e) Develop targeted funding and grant programs to complement the general funding formula.

Goal 4

Goal 4: Reduce the impact of high-risk factors, including poverty, and provide equitable resources to meet the needs of all students to ensure that they have access to quality educational opportunities.

STRATEGIES

Strategy 4.4: Develop and promote models to address the differential cost of providing high-quality education to students and target resources accordingly, including:

- a) Determining the cost of educating children/students who need more intensive instruction and attention.
- b) Determining the cost for educating children/students in early childhood (specifically quality preschool settings), early elementary, late elementary, middle and high school levels.
- Increase Section 31a/at-risk funding and investigate a tiered distribution formula that prioritizes higher concentrations of poverty (will be based on recommendation of School Funding Committee and the adequacy study).
- Address statewide facility and infrastructure needs.

Strategy 4.5: Develop a system to ensure that all students have equitable access to Career and Technical Education and Special Education resources regardless of where they live and which school they attend.

Strategy 4.6: Modify funding formulas to better align revenues and costs for districts facing declining enrollment.

- a) Enhance formulas to better match budget priorities with revenue to allow districts to have more predictability to know earlier what revenue is available to them.
- b) Better manage access to quality choices including the use of quality standards.
 - I. Develop a process that manages the opening and closing of schools.

Strategy 4.7: Implement an assessment and accountability system that reduces the impact of high-risk factors while helping ensure equitable resources. This includes:

- a) An assessment system that includes a focus on growth and measures college-ready standards, along with higher-order thinking, allows for the monitoring of progress over time, and provides actionable data for administrators, teachers, and parents.
- b) A state accountability and support system that focuses on transparency and high standards of accountability for all schools, and that holds schools accountable for closing achievement gaps while dramatically improve systems of support and capacity-building for struggling and chronically low-performing schools.

"We have a tremendous opportunity, working together as a state, to lift student achievement using these goals and strategies. This requires open minds and the will from all involved to make it work."

State Superintendent Brian Whiston

Goal 5: Ensure that parents/guardians are engaged and supported partners in their child's education.

STRATEGIES

Strategy 5.1: Develop and implement an authentic family engagement and communications plan that:

-) Provides information on key education initiatives at the state, community, local, and classroom level.
- b) Supports the Top 10 in 10 goals.
- c) Engages parents actively in education of children.
- d) Provides districts resources to build parent/guardian involvement and engagement.
- e) Develops a campaign that promotes the importance of education and parental involvement.
- f) Meets parents where they are more comfortable community or cultural centers, places of worship, etc.
- g) Enlists non-education outlets (community groups, commerce, etc.) to communicate the message.

Strategy 5.2: Target authentic family engagement in supporting and monitoring their children's education and/or behavioral goals.

- a) Provide choices for families, including open education options and access to easy-to-understand information regarding those choices.
- b) Create an easy-to-navigate and understandable school information and accountability system that is consistent across all schools.
- c) Encourage districts to implement agreements between parents, the school, educators, and students, signed by each, outlining the academic and personal goals toward each student's education.





Goal 5: Ensure that parents/guardians are engaged and supported partners in their child's education.

STRATEGIES

Strategy 5.3: Expand access to coordinated and free human service/family advocacy supports.

Strategy 5.4: Recognize parents/guardians as lifelong learners by:

- a) Expanding access to free adult literacy programming.
- b) Promoting nationally-recognized alternatives to GED, connected with credit and credential/certificate earning, and career path programs at Michigan community colleges or other workforce job-training programs.
- c) Customizing graduation/diploma standards for adult learners.
- d) Supporting schools in offering parent education, both on general childhood development issues and on skills which can help complement work in the classroom.
- e) Encouraging the development of Grand Rapids Public Schools Parent University-type programming at the district or ISD level to provide direct assistance and educational opportunities for parents.

Strategy 5.5: Implementation of PTA's National Standards for Family-School Partnerships as the model for family and community involvement:

- a) Welcoming all families into the school community.
- b) Communicating effectively.
- c) Supporting student success.
- d) Speaking up for every child.
- e) Sharing power.
- f) Collaborating with community.



Goal 6: Create a strong alignment and partnership with job providers, community colleges, and higher education to assure a prepared and quality future workforce, and informed and responsible citizens.

STRATEGIES

Strategy 6.1: Coordinate with the Workforce Development Agency, employers, and other stakeholders on strategies to increase internships, work-based learning opportunities, and service learning for students.

Strategy 6.2: Develop policy recommendations so any postsecondary course paid for with state funding will count as college credit at all postsecondary institutions in Michigan.

Strategy 6.3: Advocate for policy change so all students have access to instruction through an affordable postsecondary institution.

- a) Advocate for and implement (where appropriate) the recommendations from the career readiness study funded by the Governor (report due March of 2016).
- b) Ensure that all students, including, but not limited to, students with disabilities, have access to CTE and postsecondary options.

Strategy 6.4: Align P-20 providers' efforts with business/industry and workforce development agencies to support job training and soft skills so students are career-ready.

Strategy 6.5: Continue to expand the number of statewide articulation agreements with community colleges and four-year institutions to provide postsecondary credit for advanced high school coursework in CTE.

Strategy 6.6: Develop and implement a strategy to better understand and support Michigan public schools' capacity to provide career- and college-ready coursework and instruction to all students, and how well – including postsecondary and vocational training:

- b) Establish a consortium of postsecondary and vocational training educational entities, K-12 educational entities, K-12 advocacy organizations, labor, and Michigan businesses to:
 - I. Assess needs to strengthen and build capacity in the system.
 - II. Align educational and support systems.



Goal 7: Further develop an innovative and cohesive state education agency that supports an aligned, coherent education system at all levels (state, ISD, district, and school).

STRATEGIES

Strategy 7.1: Work together with the State Board of Education, State Superintendent, and other key stakeholders on education policy issues in order to raise student achievement and support local districts.

- Forge and expand partnerships with the legislature and governor to help align legislation, policy, funding, and MDE activities into a coherent system.
- b) Forge and expand partnerships with educational organizations.
- c) Support and implement the recommendations from the Governor's Special Education Reform Task Force.
- d) Support and implement assessment literacy.

Strategy 7.2: Accelerate student achievement by adjusting the structure of the department through the implementation of the State Systemic Improvement Plan (SSIP) in collaboration with national experts. Implementation of the SSIP will enhance the infrastructure with ISDs, districts, schools, and classrooms ensuring initiatives are fully implemented throughout the entire educational system.

Strategy 7.3: Promote a culture of innovation and continuous improvement within the broad educational system by:

- a) Utilizing the Innovation Council for districts to apply for flexibility/waivers to develop model programs with an emphasis on proactive support rather than punitive measures.
- b) Identifying, promoting, and rewarding the implementation of promising practices throughout the entire educational system by creating an MDE website for promising practices.
- c) Seeking new and creative solutions in support of accelerated student success.
- d) Promoting the development of model classrooms.
- e) Enacting a research agenda to validate promising practices that should be scaled up.

Strategy 7.4: Develop a customer service culture throughout the MDE.

- a) Strengthen relationships with schools and districts by having MDE staff provide consistent, direct assistance, remove barriers where possible, and celebrate successes.
- b) Strengthen relationship with ISDs and educational organizations by enhancing partnerships and communication channels and emphasizing collaboration.
- c) Increase face-to-face field service visits to provide information up front before monitoring takes place.

HOW THESE GOALS AND STRATEGIES WERE DEVELOPED WEB SURVEY

- Online survey open for public input from Sept. 20 Nov. 1, 2015
- 765 total responses, with close to 4,200 recommendations
- 2,875 open text responses
- Responses from 66 counties
- Approximately 40 MDE Staff participated in sorting data into categories

STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION ACTION

- Over 30 education stakeholder organizations presented their input on what would make Michigan a Top 10 in 10 education state within the next 10 years.
- Approved guiding principles and goals on December 8, 2015.

STAKEHOLDER INPUT

- Emailed specific recommendation of strategies to accomplish the approved goals.
- Met over two months to further define and refine these strategies.



GLOSSARY

Balanced Calendar

An approach to structuring the school calendar in which breaks in instructional time are spread throughout the year instead of concentrated in a long summer break. An example would include a school with three 60-day academic sessions and 20-day breaks.

http://mi.gov/documents/mde/waiver_labor_day_1-23-08_224652_7.pdf

Community Eligibility Provision

Community Eligibility is the opportunity for schools with high percentages of low-income children to provide free breakfast and lunch to all students. It increases participation by children in the school meal programs, reduces labor costs for schools, simplifies paperwork for Food Service Directors, removes the stigma from "free" students and increases federal revenues. In short, it allows for a healthier student body and a healthier school meal budget. http://www.fns.usda.gov/school-meals/community-eligibility-provision

Deeper Learning

The Great Lakes and Midwest Regional Deeper Learning Initiative is a collaboration between the Great Lakes Comprehensive Center and the Midwest Comprehensive Center, designed to help states identify, explore, and advance state-level policy, guidance, and supports that drive deeper learning practices.

http://deeperlearning-cc.org/

Early On

Early On is an early intervention system servicing children birth to three years of age with a developmental delay and/or a disability and their families.

www.Michigan.gov/earlyon

Governor's Third-Grade Reading Workgroup Report

On March 1, 2015, Governor Snyder established a Third-Grade Reading Workgroup to analyze Michigan's third-grade reading proficiency rate and to provide recommendations for how to improve this proficiency rate. The workgroup released this report on June 3, 2015.

https://www.michigan.gov/documents/ snyder/3rd_Grade_Reading_Workgroup_ Report_490977_7.pdf

Grand Rapids Public Schools (GRPS) Parent University

An action group formed by parents to help current, prospective, and GRPS volunteers become an active partner in their children's academic career. Through a robust offering of classes, parents learn methods to help their children reach their full potential. https://parents.grps.org/

Integrated Student Supports

A school-based approach to supporting students' academic success by developing or securing and coordinating services that target academic and non-academic barriers to achievement. These may include, but are NOT limited to: targeted learning interventions for individual student needs, before and after school programs for tutoring and mentoring, non-traditional learning opportunities such as online or community-based coursework, physical and mental health services, and social service supports.

GLOSSARY (CONTINUED)

Michigan's Plan to Ensure Equitable Access to Excellent Educators

Michigan's State Plan to Ensure Equitable
Access to Excellent Educators charts a course
to ensure that students of color and students
from low-income families are served
by teachers of comparable experience
and effectiveness to those serving white
students and students from more privileged
backgrounds.

https://www2.ed.gov/programs/titleiparta/equitable/miequityplan060115.pdf

National Board Certification

Michigan has supported the National Board Certification process since 1993, enabling approximately 394 Michigan teachers to achieve National Board Certification. Teachers who hold a valid National Board Certificate in the content area that they are endorsed meet the state's definition of a highly qualified teacher.

http://boardcertifiedteachers.org/

PTA's National Standards for Family-School Partnership

A framework for strengthening parent/ family involvement reflecting recent research and improved parent and community involvement practices. Outlines specific types of involvement as being especially beneficial to children's academic success. http://www.pta.org/nationalstandards

Reaching for Opportunity Report

In 2014, leaders in higher education formed a Postsecondary Credential Attainment Workgroup to develop an action plan for allowing Michigan citizens to acquire more postsecondary credentials. The workgroup produced a report titled Reaching for Opportunity.

http://mitalentgoal2025.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/12/Reaching-for-Opportunity-2015-Report1.pdf

Sinking Fund

A Sinking Fund is a fund established by a school (or other governmental entity) by setting aside revenue over a period of time to fund a future capital expense, or repayment of a long-term debt through a millage assessed as a local tax. Under Michigan law, Sinking Funds may be used for major repairs, renovations, construction, and land. Legislation has been introduced to also allow such funding for technology and safety enhancements.

http://legislature.mi.gov/doc.aspx?mcl-380-1212

State Board of Education Michigan Outof-School Time Standards of Quality

The Michigan Out-of-School Time (MOST) Standards of Quality are designed to assist schools and other organizations in developing high quality, comprehensive OST programs for all children and youth in grades K-12. The standards are based on research concerning quality programs for school-age children and youth.

https://www.michigan.gov/documents/mde/MOST_SBE_APPROVED_031213_422342_7.pdf

STEM and STEAM

STEM is an acronym for the fields of science, technology, engineering, and mathematics. STEAM is a similar acronym adding the arts.



STATE OF MICHIGAN STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION LANSING

RICK SNYDER GOVERNOR BRIAN J. WHISTON STATE SUPERINTENDENT

State Board of Education Statement on Senate Bill 710

The State Board of Education (SBE) encourages the Legislature to address the following missing elements from Senate Bill 710, a bill that creates Community School Districts:

- A) Authorize an elected Community School Board to hire the Superintendent for the Community School District at the earliest election possible.
- B) Elimination of the debt of the Qualified School District without extracting resources from the State School Aid Fund.
- C) Establish set lengths of terms for specific seats on the Community District School Board, so candidates know before the election the exact length of service on the Board.

Adopted February 9, 2016

STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION

JOHN C. AUSTIN – PRESIDENT • CASANDRA E. ULBRICH – VICE PRESIDENT MICHELLE FECTEAU – SECRETARY • PAMELA PUGH – TREASURER LUPE RAMOS-MONTIGNY – NASBE DELEGATE • KATHLEEN N. STRAUS EILEEN LAPPIN WEISER • RICHARD ZEILE



STATE OF MICHIGAN STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION LANSING

RICK SNYDER GOVERNOR BRIAN J. WHISTON STATE SUPERINTENDENT

State Board of Education Statement on Senate Bills 713-15

The State Board of Education agrees with the Legislature's concern that Michigan classrooms must be staffed so children can attend school as scheduled. Teachers and families alike should be able to expect that our schools are safe, with conditions that allow children to learn in a healthy environment.

Recent staff sickouts have led to school closures, highlighting issues related to school safety and environmental hazards, and have prompted the Legislature to debate bills aimed at these actions. The State Board of Education requests that the Legislature consider tabling these bills in consideration for an important stated reason behind the teacher actions: school safety.

It is vitally important that the Legislature create a mechanism for teachers and staff across the state to report safety and health concerns to a neutral third party when educators feel that their local district is not able or willing to address their concerns. The Legislature has a duty to ensure that public money is being spent wisely and that our students, staff and teachers can work and learn in a safe and appropriate environment.

Adopted February 9, 2016

STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION

JOHN C. AUSTIN – PRESIDENT • CASANDRA E. ULBRICH – VICE PRESIDENT MICHELLE FECTEAU – SECRETARY • PAMELA PUGH – TREASURER LUPE RAMOS-MONTIGNY – NASBE DELEGATE • KATHLEEN N. STRAUS EILEEN LAPPIN WEISER • RICHARD ZEILE



STATE OF MICHIGAN STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION LANSING

RICK SNYDER GOVERNOR BRIAN J. WHISTON STATE SUPERINTENDENT

State Board of Education Statement on Opening and Closing of Public Schools

The State Board of Education urges the Legislature to pass legislation directing the Michigan Department of Education to create a mechanism overseeing the opening and closing of public schools to ensure quality, accessibility and financial stability.

Adopted February 9, 2016

STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION

JOHN C. AUSTIN – PRESIDENT • CASANDRA E. ULBRICH – VICE PRESIDENT MICHELLE FECTEAU – SECRETARY • PAMELA PUGH – TREASURER LUPE RAMOS-MONTIGNY – NASBE DELEGATE • KATHLEEN N. STRAUS EILEEN LAPPIN WEISER • RICHARD ZEILE

State of Michigan State Board of Education

RESOLUTION

CITIZENS RESEARCH COUNCIL OF MICHIGAN CENTENNIAL

WHEREAS, the Citizens Research Council of Michigan, is a privately funded, not-for-profit public affairs research organization, founded in 1916; and

WHEREAS, the goal of the Citizens Research Council of Michigan is to secure good government for the citizens of Michigan that is representative of and responsible and accountable to the public, effective in carrying out its responsibilities and providing services, and efficient in the use of its resources; and

WHEREAS, the Citizens Research Council of Michigan provides factual, unbiased independent information on issues concerning state and local government organization and finance; and

WHEREAS, the Citizens Research Council of Michigan presents research findings to bring about sound public policy on state and local issues; and

WHEREAS, the Citizens Research Council of Michigan has adhered to the principles of accuracy, objectivity and independence and developed and maintained a high degree of credibility with both public officials and citizens; and

WHEREAS, the Citizens Research Council of Michigan has made contributions through research and analysis of education issues informing and enriching policies adopted by the State Board of Education; and

WHEREAS, the Citizens Research Council of Michigan is highly respected in Michigan and throughout the nation and has received numerous awards; now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED, that the Michigan State Board of Education expresses its heartfelt congratulations to the Citizens Research Council of Michigan as it celebrates its centennial.